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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Fleur Hotels
Private Limited (“the Parent"), its subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership Firm (the
Parent, its subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership Firm together referred to as
“the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019,
and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein referred to as “the consolidated
financlal statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership referred to in the Other
Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("“the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ('Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2019,
and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Respon sibility
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the
" other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the sub-paragraph (a) of the
@lr Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
[i={ ppinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

* The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included In the Board's Report but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

« QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

= In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the
subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership audited by the other auditors, to the
extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the
other auditors and consider whether the other information Is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, Other Information so far
as it relates to the subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership, is traced from their
financial statements audited by the other auditors.

= If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors |s responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
rmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liguidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Q
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to ebtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Parent and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« FEwvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

=« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been

(g_, audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the
scope of our audit work and In evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of 5 subsidiaries and 1 Limited Liability
Partnership Firm (as mentioned below), whose financial statements reflect total assets
of Rs. 46,717.98 lacs as at March 31, 2019, total revenues of Rs. 5,160.72 lacs and
net cash inflows amounting to Rs, 66.03 lacs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far
as It relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries
and LLP, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and LLP s based solely on the reports of the

other auditors.

Subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership Firm included in consolidated financial
staternents and not audited by us are as below:

A, Subsidiaries -
1. Celsia Hotels Private Limited
2. Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited
3. lora Hotels Private Limited
4. Ophrys Hotels Private Limited
5. Bandhav Resorts Private Limited

B. Limited liability partnership firm -
1. Mezereon Hotels LLP

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

&
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditors on the separale financial statements of the
subsidiaries and LLP incorporated in India referred to in the Other Matters section

above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with
the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Parent as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated
in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act,

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A" which is based on the auditors’ reports of the
Parent and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal
financial controls over financial reporting of those companies.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, no remuneration has been paid by the Parent to its directors during

the year.

h) With respect to the other matters to be Included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group. (Refer Note 32)

i) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts. (Refer Note 40)
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iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India. (Refer Note 41)

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
{(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W / W-100018)
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Vijay Agarwal
(Partner)
@. (Membership No. 094468)

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 29, 2019
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as
of and for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of Fleur Hotels Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Parent”}
and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)". These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assels, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls aver financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error.

(Sl We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
; @ the other auditors of the subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, in terms of their

(2
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reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
pravide a basls for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's Internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our infoermation and according to the explanations glven to
us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the
Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary companies incorporated in
India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the respective companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

&
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates
to 5 subsidiary companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W / W-100018)

6.5 Um .

Vijay Agarwal
" (Partner)

@_ {Membership No. 094468)

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2019
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« Cwrrent Aocoanis Ol I AlL64
Tutal cash nnd cash equivalents OH6.02 §20:44
¥ There are nio nen-cash changes arising from financing petivities,
Tlie secompanying notes are an integm part of the financial stalements. Lod2
As per our reporl of even date
For Delaitic Haskins & Sells LLP Foi amil on behall of the Bourd of Divectors aof
Chartered Accoumntms Fleur Hobels Private Limited
o
£ | :
e VA w_ﬁ’;
i f £ il ——
Vijay Aglhrwal ” P Putanjali G, Keswani Indder Pal Batra
TPariner WL\ . Chitomin & Managing Director Chier Flisnelal Oflicer
a DIN-DI002974
G 1 meq!
-
oo Arorn
Company Seeretary
Place | Mew Delhi Place ; Mew Dellw
Drate : May 29, 2019 Date = May 29, 2014
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Notcs to conselld'lted flnancual st‘lteme'nts fﬂt the yea: en(ied Malcll 3] 2019

1.

2.1

22

Cor po; ate infm nntmn

'Flem Holels anate Lumted (the Company) 'md its subsuhat ies (coE}echely, the GtOLlp) isa

private. company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies :

Act applicable in India. The leglsteled office - of the company |s iocated at. Asset No 6, .

Aemc;ty Hosp]tahty District, New De!iu I 100_)7

- The Company, 1ts subs:dianes and l;mtted hablllty parmelshlp (togethe1 1efened as “The_ e ) )
_'Gloup”) jntend 1o carry out business ‘0f - deve]opmg, owning, acqtmmg, 1enovatmg, and
promoting hotels, motels, resorts, testamants, efe, undel the bland name. of Lemon T:ee Hotei 5

Lemon Tlee Pl emlel and Red Fox Hotel

The consolldated | maneia] statements ale apploved for 1ssue by the Bmld of dkrectms on May o
29,2019. - - L '

_Basis of preparal‘inn -
Slgmﬁmnt accountmg pollcws

These ﬁnanclal slatemenis are plepaled in accor danee w1tE1 lndlan Accountmg Standald (]nd o

" AS), and the provisions of the Companies Act ,2013 (the Act) (to the extent notiﬁed) The . .

Ind ‘AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read ‘with Rule 3 .of the Compames o
.(ind[an Aceountmg, Standaldq) Rules 2015 aud 1efevant amendment 1ules 1ssued theleaf ter. -

_The consoltd%ed ﬁnanc:ai shtements have ‘heen plepaned on a. gomg concem ba31s usmg

: h:stoucal ‘cost convention: and on, an acctual me‘fhod of accountmg, except for certain

ﬁmnmal assefs and llabihtles whlch ale measured at falr value/ 'lmomsed cost (1efe1 note :4)

Accountmg pohcies have been conslslentiy ﬂpphed ehcept whele a newly issued accountmg o
- standard js initially adoptedor a 1evss:on fo an exnstmg accoum standmd 1equned a chang,e to -

the aceountmg pohcy llitherlo in use.

" The consohdated ﬁnanclal slatements are p;esented n. Indlan Rupees (INR) and "111 vaEues are
o -'_lounded fo thenea;est lakhs expect whele othetw1semdtcaled RN i S

_ BaSIS of censolldatlon

-The consolidated fi nanmaE statements compl ise the ﬁnanma] slatemems of t‘ne Company 1ts o
. subsidiaries and limited liability pﬂt’lncrshlp (togethel referred as “The Gmup ) as at 31
o .Ma1 ch 20 1 9. Spemf' caliy, the Gmup conlr ols an’ mvestee if and only it the G;oup has

Powel ovel the nwestee (1 e. ex1stm_g, nghts that gwe lt lhe cuuent ablllty to du ect the

lelevant actlwlles of the mvesiee)
_“Exposure, or rights, to vauable 1etums ﬁom 1ts 1nv01vement wnth the mvestee and

;-- The abihty to use 1ts powe: ove1 1hemvestee IO affect 1t51etum R TR

._'Genelally, thele isa plesumptlon that a. majonty of votmg rlghts 1esull in coml o] T o suppon PERE
.- ‘this presumption and when the Gmup has less than a.majority of the votmg or smnlat rights © 0P
" of an investee, the Group considers all 1elevant facts and mrcums‘rances m assessmg, whethel S

it has power over an investee, including: -

o The contractual anangement w1th the other vote holdets of the mvestee L
e . Rights arising from other contractual anangements R St
e TheGroup’s votmgughts and potenua] voting rights S -
s The size of the group’s-holding: of voting 1lghts :elatwe 10 lhe 51ze and dlspel smn of G
the holdmgs of the othel votmg nghts holde]s a : - :




Flenr Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019

(=)

(b)

(€)

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an invesiee il faets and circumstances
indicate that there are changes 1o one or more of the three elements ol control. Consolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidinry, Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial
statemenis from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases 1o control the

subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of (he group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
ransactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements (o

ensure conformity with the group's accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up 1o
same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March.

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected 1o continue with the carrying value of all of
its property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 in the consolidated financial
statements, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed
cost of such property plant and equipment.

Consolidation procedure:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary
are hased on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial

statements at the acquisition date.

Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the
parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to
nceount for any related goodwill.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity. income, expenses and cash fMows
relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are
eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financinl statements. Ind ASI2 Income Taxes applies to temporary
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup

Iransactions.

Profit ar loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attri buted to the
equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating lo transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (including decmed acquisition’ deemed
disposal), without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equily transaction. If the Group
loses control over n subsidiary, it:

e Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
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Naoles to consolidated financial statements for the year ended Mawvch 31, 2019

2.3

(a)

fE( @f‘ il

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-conirolling inferests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the Fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recopnises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously reco gnised in OCI to profit
ar loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had
dirvectly dispused of the related assets or liabilities.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured os the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For
ench business combination, the Group elects whether 1o measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree al fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assels. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Al the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured al their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicatecd below:

e Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assels or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and
Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

» Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the
acquires or share — based payments arrangements ol the Group entered into lo replace
share-based payment armangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind

AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.
o Assels (or disposal Groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS

105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in

accordance with that standard.
s Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining

contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does nol consider potential renewal
of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial nssels el Tinbilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the canfractual terms.
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit

or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration 1o be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value ol

the acquisition date. At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are
mensured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37

and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with Ind AS 18 Revenue,

d




Fleuwr Hot

¢ls Private Limited
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(h)

(e @6 %o\

Contingent consideration classified as an asset or linbility that is a financial instrument and
within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes
in fair valie recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the
scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in nccordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and
subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transierred and the amount recognised Tor non-controlling interests. and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. I the fair value of the
net assets acquired is in excess of the agpregale consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether it has carrectly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure (he amounts 1o be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess ol the fair value of net assels
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferved, then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, il there is no clear evidence of bargain

purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing
the same through OCI.

After initinl recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any aceumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that nre
expected 1o benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or linbilities of

the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired, If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
ihe unit and thei to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit, Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where poodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed

operation and the portion of the cash-generafing unit retained.

If the initial nccounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
petiod in which the combination occurs, the Group reporis provisional amounts for the items
for which the accounting is incomplete, Those provisional amounts are adjusted (hrough
goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information oblained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These
adjustments are called s measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not

exceed one year from the acquisition date.
Current versus non-eurrent classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is trented as current when it is:

s Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
« Held primarily for the purpose of trading

€
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Notes to consolidated Tinaneial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
s Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a linbility

for af least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assers gre clpssified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

manths after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assels and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as s
aperating cycle.

(¢)  Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

The Compuny's financial statements are presented in INR, which is nlso the Company's
funclional currency. Presentation currency is the currency it which the company’s financial
statements are presented. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity
primarily generates and expends cash.  All the financial information preseénted in Indian
Rupees (INR) has been rounded to the nearest of lakhs rupees, except where otherwise stated.

Transactions and balances

‘Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities ol their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average: rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assefs and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss

Non-monelary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,

respectively).
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(d)

Fair value measnrement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be réceived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between markel participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measuremenl is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
linhility inkes place either:

= [n the principal market for the assel or liability, or

s In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the assel or

Hability
The principal or the most advaniageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assel takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the nsset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuntion techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances ancl for which
sufficient data are available to mensure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether iransfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant 1o
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, External
valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The management selects
external valuer en various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management decides, after
discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to

use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values ol assets and
linbilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevanl documents.
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(e)

' v1cience of i 1Is standannc seﬂmg puce

The management in c,onjuncllon with the Company s exler nal valuers, also cmnpam the
change in the fair value of each asset and habihly wnh 1elevan£ e:\telnal sources to determme S

whethe; the change is teasonable

For the purpose of fail value disc]osmes the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabifities on the basis of the nature, char acteus’ucs and usks of . the asset.or hablhty and the

level of the fair value lnex al chy

Thss note summal ises accoummg pollcy Em ian V'ﬂue Olhel fan va]ue 1e]ated disclosures are
given in the lelevam uotes . o

e Dfsclosmes for vahntlon methods signifi cant estimates and assumpnons (nm‘e 29)
e antltallve disclosures of fair value measurement hlexatchy (nole 34) - o
e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note ._34) _

Revenue recognition _

The Company earns revenue ptlmanly ﬁom 1116 busmess of canymg developmgp, oxvnmg,
acquiring, renovating and pr omotmg hotels, motels, resorts, reslamanls ete. meEm the bland
of Lemon Tlee Plemlel Lemon Tlee Hotef and Red Fox Hotel SEEN L

Effeclwe April E 2018 the GIOU[) has apphed lnd AS 115 “Revenue ﬁom Contlacls w1th
Customers™ which establishes a comprehensive framework fo. depict tlmmg and‘amount of
revenue fo be recognised. The ‘Group has adopted Ind AS [15 using ‘cumulative catch- -up
transition method, where any effect arising upon application of this standard is. tecogmsed as-
at the date of initial application (i.e April 1, 2018). The standard is applied only to contracts

that are not completed as at the date of initial apphcatlon and The compatative.information in_

the statement of profit and loss is not restated - i.e. the compalative information continues to
be reported under previous standards on revenue i.e Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11, Tilele was no .
ll‘np’lCl on adoplwn 0f]11d AS 15t the f‘nancnl s!atements oflhe GIOLI}} BN

In anangemems fm TOOm revenue and lelated scl v:ces 1he Gtoup has apphﬁ:d the gmdance in . '_
Ind AS 115 for 1ecogmtlon of Revenue from contract with customer, by -applying the revenue .-
recognition criteria for each distinct - per formance obhganon The - auangements wnth '

customers generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and refated services as
distinct per fmmance obllgatlons For allocating the ttansactlon price, the Group has measured - .
the revenue in respect of each performance obhgatmn ofa. contract at its relative standalone -

selling pnce ‘The price that is regularly chal;_,ed for an item when soid sepalate]y is. the best_ o

. 'Revenue is lecog,mzec{ 1o the extent th'al it-ds. pmbable that the economlc benef ts w:i ﬂow to :
- the Group and the revenue can be rehably measured, 1ega1dless of when the payment is being - ;
“made, Revenue is ‘measured at the fair -value of the consideration received or 1ecewable
taking mto account connactually defi ned terms .of payment and excluding taxes or duty The'."{_ -
_Group assesses its revenue mangemems against specific criteria to determine if it is actingas .-
- principal or agent. The GIOle has ‘concluded that it is acting as a: pnnmpai in all ofits revenue. .
. :auangements “The spemﬁc 1ec0gmt10n cnteila descubed be]ow must also be met befme o

- revenue 1s zecogmzed

' Sales tax/ value added taA (VAT)/Goods & SGIVICB Tax(GST) is not 1ecelvcd by the Gmup on
its own account. Rather, if is tax collected on.value added to the commodlty by the sel]e: on ..
_'beha]fofthe govel nmenl Accoxdmgly, i IS excluded ﬁom levenue R R :

_ Rooms Resmm cml Banquers and Olhe: Ser wces

~ Income ﬁom guest accommodatlon is 1ecogmzed ona. day lo day ba51s aftel the guest checks_'-_;* Sl

into the Hotels and are stated net of alfowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
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N

as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT), Goods and Serviee Tax(GST) and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the
billed as at the year-end is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately,

Sale of goody

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed 1o the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized nt
the points of serving these ilems lo the puests. Sales are sialed exclusive of Sales Tux [/

VATIGST.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected lile of the fnancial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the nel carrying amount of the financial assel or liability. Interest
income is included in Minance income in the income statement.

Dividencly

Revenue is recognized when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Management Fee

Revenue from management services comprises fixed & varlable income. Fixed Income |s
recognised pro-ratn over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered,
Variable income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant

agreement,
Taxes

Taxes comprises current income tax and deferred tax

Current ficotie lix

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
*profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of profit and loss because of items
ol income or expense that are faxable or deductible in other years and ilems that are never
taxable or deductible, The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recopnised outside profit or loss is recognised oulside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax ifems are
recognised in correlation o the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

where appropriale.

3
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- Dqﬁ{f_'}_‘ed tdA_”. - >

Deferred tax 1s p;'d_\f_ided wvsing the liability m.e_lh_od on tenjporé_ry d_ifferencés bf:t_wcen l'hé_ tax o

- bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounis for financial reporting purposes at the =
reporting date. LT T T T s e e

- Deferred 1ax.liab_ili_ties aré_.recdg.nis'ed for ._a.E_i_taxa'b_ie_t_ﬁ_:ﬁlp(_jr_'ﬁj’_y_diffej‘_énk_:g_s, cx'qep__t;. R

@ -W}jen th_c: d(_aﬁ:ri'e'd -{m{_ liability _.ar.i_s_e_s _ﬁ_‘m_ﬁ thé 'i_n_iti_a:i_ rf_:_:co_gni_tfi_dl_l_:b'f :g"dud'w'?'ll_ oF an Ei'SSét. or

liability ‘in a transaction that: is not a business combination and, at.the time of he
“transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit orloss - - L

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with inyestments in subsidiaries,
" associates and interests in join ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary -
differences ‘can be controlled and it is ‘probable that the ielﬁ_bo'rai"_y fdiffcrét_lces_'\'v_i_li not.
reverse in the foreseeable future R B S

" Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward . -
- of unused tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assefs -

- are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit: will be ‘available against -
‘which the deductible femporary differences, and the carry forward of vnused tax credits and - -
“unused fax losses can be utilised, except: 7 R B

e . When the deferred tax asset relating to the :deduciible_'t__empm'ziry ._di_ffer"éﬁcé_:éi'jses from the -
initial recognition of an assef or liability ina transaction that is‘not a business combination

.- loss - Do I L L
s In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with i_n__veﬂnwhts in subsidiaries, - -
* . associates and interests iin joint ventures, deferred tax -assets .are recognised only:to the -

" extent that it is_probable that the temporary, _ci_i_fferences: will reverse in the foreseeable

. future and taxable pr_oﬁt will be available against _w_h_ic'h.'t'he temporary d_if_ft31_‘_e1_1¢és_ can be
--l_!tilised CRRER T DD T T

. The c_ét_r_ry_ing_ _émoun_l of .d_efc_l.‘red fax hssgls '(in_'_c]_u_ding' MAT cr_c'd_it .;aV_é_ti_labl_e) is ;jcvi_ev_i?ed at
“each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that:it is no longer probable that sufficient

.and, at the time of the transaction, affects '_n"e_iiher ftheﬁac&i:oumihg'proﬁt':n__or_taxablc profitor

taxable profit will be available to _all_bw all or part of ithe ;d_e_f_er_ljéd tax ‘asset to be utilised.

" Unrecognised deferred tax assefs are re-assessed at each teporting date and are recognised to

" the extent thai it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

" ‘asset to be recovered.

7 Deferred tax assets ;and__Iiabi_lit__ic's'ar'_e' measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply m .

“the year when the ‘asset is realised or the liability is:settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)

* that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, = -7

 Deferred tax _i‘é]ati_ng' to 'E_t_e_th$ :1:'cc_ogﬁ'isccl_ .Qiitsidé 'prn_::)'ﬁt_. orloss 1s _1‘3Cpgt_ﬁé¢d _opltsidé __'piif(')'ﬁ_t or
o loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred 1ax. items are recognised in .

- correlation to the underlying {ransaction either in OCI or directly in equity. - SRR R

Deferred tax :aééet_s'ahd fdefeh_'_e_d_:;ﬁx.liébiki_ties are offset if é_'._l_ggé_n_}_ly"en'fo_l.‘_c_.:'e'abié :;'.igﬁt:éxi_s't_s to

- {axable entity and t_h_é same _tax_atioh authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satistying the criteria for

set off current tax assets against cutrent tax liabilities and the deferred taxes _l'élatf:'-to_”_'s_he same . o

separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts . -

d_bout facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date,

and circumstances '_c_l_lahge_:_,-Acqu'_ired deferred tax benefits ;jecggi'lisé_d_Witlli_n the measurement . - . o
period reduce goodwill related 1o that acquisition'if they result from new information obtained =0 A
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If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Sales! value added taxes/GST paid on acquisition of assets o on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net ol the amount of sales/ value added taxes/GST paid,
excepl:

o When the tax incurred on @ purchase of assels or services is not recoverable from the
laxation authority. in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost ol acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

« When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

Property, plant and equipment

On transition 1o IND AS, the Group has elected lo continue with the carrying value of all of its
property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous
GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, property, plant and equipment is staled at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criterin are met. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready [or
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assels,
commences when (he assets are ready for their imended use, Frechold land is nol depreciated.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced al intervals, the
Group depreciates them separately based on their specilic useful lives, Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset il the recognition criteria forn provision are met,

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Asscts Useful life considered
(SLM)
Plant & Machinery 15 Years
Building 60 Years
_Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years —
Office Equipments 5 Years
| Furniture and Fixtures 8§ Years
Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years
Commercial Vehicles 6 Years
| Private Vehicles 8 Years
Compuiers 3 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(h)

(M

income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed al each financial year end. and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Intangible nssels

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use
fhat carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset.

Intangible assels acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The usefisl lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually at year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level, The assessment of
indefinite lile is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If net, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective

basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assel are measured as (he
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes inierest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an assel that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially rendy for their
intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount
capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available
out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such
current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds
used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated
using & weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged Lo profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is

interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial

instrument,
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Leases

The determination of whether an arangement is (or containg) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is. or contains, a
lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is nol explicitly

specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2015, the Group has determined whether the
arrangement contain lease on the basis ol facts and circumslances exisling on the date of

transition.

Group as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as n finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is

classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease al the inception date fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability
so as to achieve a constant rate of inlerest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in nccordance with
the Group's peneral policy on the borrowing costs.

A leased assel is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
assel is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a

straight-line basis over the lease termunless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit
even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis, or

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to inerease in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor's expecied inflationary cosl increases. If payments
to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not

met.

Ciroup ax a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating |eases. Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operating lease receipt are recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease termunless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time patiern of the user's benefit
even if the receipt from the lessee are not on that basis, or

(b) The receipts from the lessee are structured to increase in ling with expected general
inflalion to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increnses. If receipts
from the lessee vary because ol factors other than general inflation, then this condition is
not met. .

Leases are classified as [inance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of

ownership transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance
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" indicators, "

Jeases are recorded as receivables at the Group’s nef investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect.a constant periodic rate of return on

the net mvestment outstanding in respect of the lease. -

Stamp duties .|jayab1_e to local éut'horities on registration of l_eaé_e ég:'ee111c11ts, are réco.gi.lisec_i as
“prepaid expense and charged ofT to Statement of Profit.and Loss on an equitable basis over the

lease term.

Conversion charges payable to local authorities on conversion of use of jind_u_st_t‘iai plot for :
hotel purposes, are recognised as prepaid expense and charged off to statement of profit and
loss on an equitable basis over the lease tetm. - ' : S PRI
Invenfories

Stock of food & bev_e_a_‘age's','stot_'es _and dpf;_rating_ "_S._U].)_plié_s -a_fe _\aail_led at_-lo_\ﬁfe;-.éf cost -ai}d net
realisable Value. Cost ‘includes cost:of purchase and othercosts incurred in_bringing the - -

“inventories fo their present 'loé_ati_oh and condition. Cost is d_eft}l‘l‘t_li.l:led on a {irst in first.out

basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less .
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary (o make sale. - SRR
Impairment of :lozl—filaal;bizil_ aSsgts S

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be =~
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required,

‘the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the

higher of an asset’s 01‘_cash_~gcn_crz_iti_ng unit’s (CGU) fair \{zi]ueiess_cosés of -dis_pojsa'l.an_d its -
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for.an individual asset, unless the ‘asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
Group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an assel .or CGU. exceeds its recoverable
amount, the assel is consideted impaired and is ‘written down to its recoverable amount, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value - -
using a ‘pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset, In determining ‘net ‘selling price, recent. market . * -

‘transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an.

appropriate valuation ‘model is -used. These '_calCL_I_i_ati_ons__jan_:__-cormboral_(;d by valuation.
multiples, quoted -share_;_pri(_:z:s for publicly traded -companies or other available fair. value -

‘The Group bases its impairment _cal_c_u_i_ation' _t)__ﬁ detailed -budgets and forecast zc:al_c__ulat'ions," '
' “which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs ‘to ‘which the individual assets
“are allocated. These budgels and: forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.: =" °
" For Jonger periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied 1o project future cash -

* {lows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the -

- most recent budgets/forecasts, -the 'G_rb_u_p_'ex_ta'a_pélatf_ts__'c'_zish__:ﬂ_ou_f.'-projé'(_:lio'r}'s:i_l_l'__ﬂ]e:_'bt_idge{_ L

using a steady or "de_cii_ﬁing gro'wth.:l_'_ate' for subsequent years, unless an in__creasil_lg rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for

the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the - "
TImpairment losses, i'nclu_ding'_impairmem on inventories, are recognised ‘in the statement of " ;
Cprofitand loss. i R

~For assets_excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each_.1'e_p(51"ting'_d_ate_ to determing

“whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer existor =

have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates . the asset’s or .CGU’s
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~recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been & change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoyerable amount since the - -

‘last impairment loss was recognised. The :1'e_vers_al is | imited so that the carrying amount of the -

" assel does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have -

. been dete_rm_ined; net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset-in .
- prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit.or loss unless the asset is -

carried at'a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. =

(m) - Provisions

ROR

General -

Provisions are recognised when the Group has_-a present obligation (legal or.constructive) asa . -

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic_ _l)e_néﬁt"s

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of -

" the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and’
. ‘loss net of any reimbursement. : B O S T
. . The amount "i'e;':dghi_sed as @ provision is the "b_é's_f__-'f_:sl_l;maté'df th_r_é '(_:o_ns_id_eljé_itic_m:_:f;:éﬁ:héd'-to. -
‘settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks .

and uncertainties _surroun_ding the obligation. - -

" If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
_pre-tax rate -that reflects, when _appropriate, “the risks ‘specific ‘to_the liabil.ity,":\z\__f_hen_
- discounting is used, the increase in the, provision due fo the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost. © - e T R T e B

_Provisions are reviewed at thé end of each reporting period and éldjtl_ﬁ;ted fo. 1"éﬂ_e¢_t _ih.e .gurl‘énf
best estimate. If it is no longer. probable that an.outflow ‘of resources would be required to -
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. SR B R I A AT
Contingent Assets/ Liabilities

~Contingent -assets are. not recognised. However, when realisation ‘of income is virtually -
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as anasset, .

.- Contingent fiabilities are di_sc'l_os_ec_l in notes fo accounts ";thn th_e!?e_:_isjr'gi_- possible '_Obligati_qn1:-_-'___
~arising from past events, the existence. of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
- “Company or a present obligation that-arises from past events where it is either not probable ~ ~ *
7 that an owtflow of resources will be required o settle or a reliable estimate of the amount. s
- cannot bemade. . TR T L L e R

" Contingent liabilities recognised in a busipess combination

‘A contingent }iabi_iity'-recogniscd__ in a business .c_o_mbi;iﬁt_idn is initially mea'sm_'ed:ét.ifs fair

* value, Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the. amount that would be recoguised in - -
accordance with the requirements for-provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, - FRR
- when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognised in ‘accordance with the requirements
_ _'f'orl'even_uB_-}'e'cogll_itidn. T T T T

'_ ‘Retirement and qthcr_emploj*eg behc_fi_ts,”_ _:- s o
- Retirement b_e_h_eﬁt in the fo:‘in of .p_i‘ci)vidél'}t'_ﬁil_ld' isa d_éﬁ_ne'd Cc:nitl"i_bgti_(.)_i} scheme The g.rzo_u:p _' 5
“has no ‘obligation, “other than ‘the contribufion payable.to the ‘provident fund. The: group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident. fund scheme as an ‘expense, “whenan T

¢
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employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheel date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as o liability nfter deducting the contribution already
paid, If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
{he balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future pnyment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year, Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is
expensed ofT at the time of payment of premium.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in nel interest on the net defined benefit linbility and the return
on plan assels (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit linbility ),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit 1o
retained earnings through OCL in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are nol
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendiment or curtailment, and
s The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the nel defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:
s Service cosls comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losseés on
curailments and non-routine settlements: and
« Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a delined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
coniributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respective trusts

Short-term and ather long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits aceruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted

amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of shoit-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

The Group treats leaves expected o be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken lo the
statement of profil and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as
current linbility in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months afier the reporting date. Where Group has the unconditional legal
and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

'.ﬁ:r':-- i' Q” )

|
L1
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Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Finaneial assefs
Initial recagnition and measirement

All financial assets are recognised initially a1 fair value plus, in the case of financial assets nol
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable 1o the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that requive delivery of
assels within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commiis fo

purchase or sell the asset,

Subseguent medsurement

For purposes of subsequent measurcment, financial assels are classified in following

cotegories:

» Debt instruments at amortised cost

o Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments. derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss

(FVTPL)
« Equity instruments measured ol fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

Debt instramients of amortised cos!
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b}  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rale (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss, This category generally applies to trade and other receivables,
loans to subsidiaries elc. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 9.

Debt instrimment at FITOCT

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVYTOCI if both of the following criteria are mel;

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment
lasses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the
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‘ISSGI’ cumulatwe gain or-loss pr ewously :ecog,msed in:0OCl is, rcclasmﬁed from the equity to >
P&L. Interest earned whnlst holdmg FVTOCi debt ms‘u ument is 1ep01 ted as mtel est mcome .

usm;v the EIR method
Debt msn mnem al ¥ V T PL

FVTPL is a 1esu;lual categon y fo; debt mst; umems Any debt msnument which does not meet
the Clllf:i ia f01 categonzstion as at amor nzed cost oras FVTOCI is chss}ﬂed as.at. %VTPL L

In additzon the Gmup may elect to des;gnate a debt mshument \vluch othenwse meeis
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL, However, such, election is allowed only if i
doing so reduces or eliminates a ‘measurement -or 1ecogn1t10n inconsistency (referred to as
‘lCC(}lmtmé, mlsm"ntch ) The Group has nol desxgnated my debt mst; ument asat. FVTPL

Debi instr uments included w;lhm the FVTPL categmy are measmed at. fau value w:th all
changes 1ecogmzed in Ehe P&L ' : : . S :

qumy nﬂfesfments

All equny mvestments in scope of lnd AS lO9 ale measmed at fan vaEue Lqu;ty mstluments_ S
included within the FVTPL catef,o: y are measmecl at fair value w1th all chan‘g,es 1L00§,1]1zecl m

the P&L.

Dereco gmn' on .

A f'n'mcml asset (01 where applicable a part ofa f'n'mual asset or paﬁ Df‘l Gioup ol snmlfu L -
financial ‘assets) . is pumauly dexecogmsed (1e aemoved ﬂom the Gmups consolidaled PO

balance sheet) when

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expned or.

e The Group has transferred its rights fo receive. cash flows from the asset or has assumed an -
obligatlon to pay the received cash ﬂows in full without material_delay 10 a third party -
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; ancl either (a) the Gtoup lﬂs transferred substant;ally -
all the risks and rewards of the asset or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained =~ o
__subshntlally all the usks and rewar cls of the asset but has hansfened contzol of the asset A

-Impamnem of fmancial assef.s . 5

In accmdance w1th Ind AS 109 1he Gloup apphes expectecl c:edlt loss (ECL) model fm'-' i
‘measurement and 1ecogmt10n of 1mpanment loss on the fOllowmg F nancml assets and or edlt

- risk exposme

;a) l"manmai assets ti}at are debl mstl uments ancl are measm ed at amon ttsed cosl e g loans BEREIAN
. “debt securities, deposns trade lecewables and bank’ balance = SRR v
- -b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measuted as at FVTOC] L

c) dee 1ecewdbles or any contl %tual ught io 1ecewe cash or anolhet fmanc:ﬂl ﬂsset

. The Gloup folEows snnpllﬁed appmach’ fon 1ec0gmtmn of nnpaument loss allowanee on _:
- uadelecewables . . s _ RITETEEAEN

The apphcatlon of simplified apploach does not 1equne the Gr oup to r ack chsnges in cxedn.f E
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss aliowance based on llfehme ECLs at e'lch -

' 'lepmtmg_, date nght fiom its mmal 1ecogmt10n

" For 1ecogmt10n ol" 1mpanment Eoss on othel ﬁnancmi assets and usk exposum the Group':' REE
determines that whether there has been a :s_lgmﬁeanl increase in the credit risk since initial - EN

@::_
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recognition. 1f eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used 1o provide for
impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defaull events over the
expected life of a financial instrument, The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference beiween all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accardance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e,, all
cash shortfalls), discounied at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required 1o consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

s Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral tothe contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses™ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

» Financial assets measured as al amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
ineasurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the ne
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVYTOCI: Since financinl assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount” in the OCL

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurenent

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are vecognised initially at fair valye and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable fransaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivalive financial instruments.

Stihgeeurent measnrement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Finaneial liabilities at fair value theough prafit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
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purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initinl date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied, For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabifittes at amortived cost

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well

as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discounl or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amontisation is included as

finance costs in the statement of profit and |oss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 14.

Financial guarantee conliaels

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts thal require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
puarantee contraets are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly atiributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

If a financial guarantee is an integral element of a debt instrument held by the entity, it should
not be accounted for separately.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantinlly
modified, such an exchange or modification is trealed as the derecognition of the ariginal
liability and the recognition of a new Tiability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instrimments

Financial assets and linancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention 1o seitle on a net basis, to realise the assets and

settle the linbilities simultancously.

b
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(p)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subjeci to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

(i) Mensurement of ERITDA

The Group has elected to present eamings before inlerest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the Face of the statement of profit and lass. The Group
measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In ils
measurement, the Group does nol include depreciation and amorlization expense, interest

income, linance costs and 1ax expense,

(r)  Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or sceruals of past or future operating
cash receipls or payments and ilem of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and {inancing activities of the

Company are segregated.

(%) Recent aceounting pronouncement issued but not yet effective upto the date of issuance of
financial statements

(i) Ind AS 116, Leases

Ind AS 116 — ‘Leases’ was notified on 30th March 2019, which is applicable for the accounting period
beginning from Ist April 2019. For lessees, the standard eliminates the clussilication of leases as either
operating or finance, as required by Ind AS 17, and instead introduces a single lease accounting
model. Applying that model a lessee is required 1o recognize, (a) assets and liabilities for all leases
with o term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value and (b) depreciation of
leased assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement, Lessor Accounting
under Ind AS 116 will not be having any transitional impact on injtial recognition. Under Ind AS 17,
the group was charging lease rental in statement of Profit and loss, which would be charged as
depreciation and finance cost under Ind AS |16, having a favourable impact on EBITDA.

A lessor shall recognise lense payments from leases as income on either straight-line or another
systematic basis. The standard permits two possible methads of transition:

« Full retrospective - Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

« Madified retrospective - Retrospectively, with the cumulative efTect of initinlly applying the
Standard recognized at the date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset

either at:

+ Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discountec
at lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

b)) e
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]

(iii}

(iv)

« An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amounl of any prepaid or acerued lease
payments related 10 that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial

application.
The group is in the process of evaluating the impact of transitioning from old standard i.e Ind AS |7 1o
new standard i.e Ind AS 116 and the transition approach.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatments

This Appendix clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in Ind AS 12
when there is uncertainty over income fax treatments. In such a circumstance, an entity shall recognise
and meastire its eurrent or deferred tax asset or liability applying the requirements in Ind AS 12 based
an taxable profit (tax loss), lax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates determined

applying this Appendix. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of this Appendix.

Amendment to Ind AS 12- Income Taxes

On Mareh 30, 2019, the amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection
with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in
profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognised those past transactions or events.

The amendment is effective from annual period beginning from April 1, 2019. The Group is currently
evalualing the effect of this amendment.

Amendment to Ind AS 19- Employee Benefits

On March 30, 2019, the amendments to Ind AS 19, in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements, The amendments require an entity, to use updated
assumptions to determine current service cost and nel interest for the remainder of the period after a
plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service
cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously
recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or afler April 1, 2019,
The Group does not have any impact on account of this amendment
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Flewr Hotels Private Limited

Notes 1o Comsalidated finnncial statements for the yenr ended Mureh 31, 20019

4. Capital work=in-progress

Asat Asal
March A1, 2019 Mlarch 31, 2008
(Hs in Inkhs) (R in lakhs)
Hatel ut City Center Prne
Material 12,673.58 7,006.25
Professionn) charges 249793 209581
Borndwing cosl 1,197.52 1 985,50
Salary, wiges & bonns 6021 162 44
Project stal T expenses odbier (hen salary 7802 93.19
Travelling 18.35 12.68
e mind Lyxes 1,786,710 1 670,68
Oithers 2142 35.34
14,636.34 1315189
Less Coprililised duging he yent (18,636,340 .
- 1315187
Thotel ai U daipur
Material 14,815.99 Q.724.08
Professhonnl charges 294402 146,34
Baorrowing cost 1,527 46 680,56
Salury, Wiges & Bonus 24238 168,64
Preqect stpl | expenses other then salary 17545 49,35
Trovelling 2748 .62
Rates sind taxes 46,59 46, B0
Oihiers 26 {126
19,783.03 12,536,714
Tt at olloin
Mloferiad HT06BT 2. 768. 19
Profissional charges 1,229,588 928,63
Baoreowing cost 9141 2000
Salary, Wies & Bonus 129,18 90,73
Project stalf expenses other (hen sulsry 137,32 72,95
Travelling 15,59 53
Chers 136 |38
KA11.30 4,061 89
Hatel ot MIAL Aerocily
Material 103597 1112
Mrofessional chirges 4 868,16 4,823,350
| case renl 227157 o, 06, 00
Salary, wapes & bonus 97.84 3493
Project stalf expenses other then silary 9145 §.52
Travelling .19 2598
Rates and txes 1,413.59 1.280.37
Oihers 42.52 1147
12,850.29 10.271.29
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Nates 16 Consolldnted Menneind statements for the year ended Maveh M. 29

zy(fupilnl W l=in-praress
As Ayt
Awreh 31, 2009 Muareh 31, 2018
{Hx in Inkhs) (M= in tnkhs)

Motel ot Bondbwvgarh
Materind - 111056
Prosfiessionl charges - 2120
Salary, witges & bons 20
Project stafl expenses oiher thin salary all
Travelling - 468
Rates wid taxes - 0 st
Ohilpers - .5l

- 1,356,458
[ess Copitnlised during the year - {1,356, 58)
Hotel ni Debirdii
aterial 1,505,610 157.00
Professtonal charges 1882 -
Salary, Woges & Bonus 11 .
Project stafl expenses other (he salary 1142 110
Travelling L3 082
Ttmtes anad T 7.0 0

13662 166,73

1gsa Capitalised dering e year (1.836,62) =

- 166,73
Toinl 41,444.93 401, 188.54




Fleur Hotels Pelvaie Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019

5. Intangible Assets

Rx I lakhix

Partlenlars Solftware Goodwill on Total
Consolidation
Cost or valuation
As nl April 1, 2017 117.52 9.332.39 944991
Addiions 13,47 . 1347
Disposils - . -
Al Mareh 31, 2018 13099 0.332.39 946338
Additions (Also refer nole 38) 7707 . 7707
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2019 208.06 §,332.39 49.540.45
Amoriisation and lmpaiemend
Asal April 1, 2007 23,52 - 23.52
Amortisation 21.52 - 2192
Disposals - - -
As ni March 31, 2018 4544 £ 4544
Amaitisation 30.30 . 30,30
[isposals - . &
As al March 31, 2019 75.74 - T5.74
Met Bloeh
As ol March 31, 2019 132.12 9,332,309 9.464.71
As ol Muorch 31, 2018 §5.55 0.312.39 0,417.94
Net hook value As al Asal
Mareh 31,2009 Mareh 31,2018
Intangible pssets S464.71 G170
- indl

Intangible assets under development (Sollware

implementiation)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Holels Privale Limited
Nates to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019

O Financial assels As al As al
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lukhs
(i) Other financkal assels
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits at amortised cosl 318098 7.859.28
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 106.59 93.14
Fixed deposits under lien® 292,758 218.75
3,580.32 3.171.17
— - - — |

¢ Fixed deposits under lien includes deposits lien marked with banks sgainst guaraniees issued in favour of
various Government departments,

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Nates i Coselidated finuncial siatements Bir the year ended March 31, 7019

70 Mosenreend by assets (el Al dyn ol
Nlarch 51, 2009 htarch 31, MO8
Iy o ks Roilakhs
Advisioe Ingome Tax (mel of prosvin o faantion) 1S 41341
Aot 41541
-
7.2 (hher pem-curren| assels As sl As ot
Muwrch 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
Is in Inkhs s in bakles
Clapinl Advanees §IR.25 66t 45
Dbt witl] stmivdony govenment amloinges LT A &R
Prepoiid expeies 145,97 10741
[lmanyetiaeid partoon of secunty deposiis ESLERH] ([
Totl T, 507,08 17,267 59
C—

{Thris spoce frees been snteasinaathy lefi Wkl




Flenr Watels Private Liniled
Nates tn Consolidated Noaneial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

R

Inveninrics As ot Asal
{valued af lower of eost and wet vealisable value) Muarch 31,2017 Marcly 31, 2018
s in Inkhs Rz in kakhs
Food and bevernges (exciuding liguor and wine) 6881 TH.74
L iquor wnd wine T894 5920
Siores, cutlery, crockery, Hien, provisions wnd others 16447 [ 16.22
Tutal 30,22 25416

Asal Mareh 31, 2009: Rs. 548 Iakhs, (Morch 31, 2018: Rs; 5,48 lakhis) was recognised is provision for invenlores carried ol net
fealisnkle valise
Refer footnole 1o Note 14 for inventories pledged.

{This space hay been intentianally left hlank)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes (o consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

29. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumplions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent linbilities, Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgenmiins

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

linancial statements:
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has taken cerfain land and land and building on long term lense basis. The lease agreements
generally have an escalation clause. These leases are generally non-cancellable, The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life/ remaining economic life of the property and the fuir
value of the msset, that it does not have all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these

properties and accounts for the contracis as operating leases.

Further, the Group based on an evaluation of the terms and condifions of the respective agreements
decided that wherever the escalations (generally 15% every 3 years or 20% every 4 years) are aligned 1o
the average expected general inflation of the lease term period, operating lease payments are nol required
to be provided on a straight-line basis over the lease term as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
and in other cases (including structured payment terms), operating lease payments are expensed on a
straight-line basis over the lease term in the statement of profit and loss.

Estimates anid assuwmpiiony

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
linbilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due (o market changes
or circumstonces arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
hasis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only the period of the revision and futire periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods. See Mote 34 for further disclosures.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet canno be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using other valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is nol feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes o consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Taxes

Considering that nature of the Company’s operations and history of past tax losses, deferred tax assels
(including MAT eredit) are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be generated
in fulure against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unibsorbed depreciation
and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, it is considered prudent to recognize the deferred fax assets
only to the extent of deferred tax liabilities and the Company has not recognised deferred tax assels of Rs
904.70 lakhs and Rs 848.50 lakhs as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively.

30, Group information

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include subsidiaries and Limited liability partnership

listed in the table below:

a) Subsidiaries/LLF under Direct Control

Principal Covntiob W of equily inferest
S. No. | Name of the Company Activities Incorporation March 31, | March 31,

2019 2018
1. | Celsia Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 100%: 100%
2, | Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited | Hotel Business ndin 100% 100%
3 IORA Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 69.55% 100%%
4, | Ophrys Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 100% 100%
5. | Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited | Hotel Business India 100% 100%
b Bandhav Resorts Private Limited | Hotel Business India 100%, 100%

¥ Mezercon Hotels LLP Hotel Business Indis 99.99% 99.99%
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

3. Gratuily

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of seryice is entitled to
specific benefil. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary al
retirement age. The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which
consists of an equal number of employer and employee representatives, The Board of Trustees is
responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy. The
Trust Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred 10 the insurer.
The Group makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of
actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit credit method.

Ry. I liskhx

Benelit Liability Mareh 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Gra hliljl’ PIH“ 40.64 1263

Taotal - = = - 40,6 3263
Risk analysis

Group is exposed 1o a number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined
benefits plans and management estimation of the impact of these risks are as Tollows:

s Investment risk
Fhie most of the Indian defined benefit plans are funded with Life Insurance Corporation of Tndia.
Group does not have any liberty to manage the fund provided to Life Insurance Corporation of India.
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated using a discount rate determined by
reference to Government of India bonds for Group's Indian operations. 1T the return on plan asset is
below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

= Interest risk
A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.

e Langevity risk/life expectancy
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of the employment, Increases in the life
expectancy of (he plan participants will increase the plan liability.

e Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

Mareh 31, Maieh 31,
2019 2018
Unguoted investments:
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC 100% , I[Iﬂ%_
Total 100%: 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Group’s plans are shown below:

Mareh 31,2019  March 31, 2018

Discount rale:

Pension plan 7.00% 7.30%
Future salary increases:

Pension plan 5.00% 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners af (he age of 65: Years Years
Pension plan

Male 6l 6l
Female 60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2019 is as shown below:

Indin gratuity plan:

Rs in lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2019 2019 2019 2019
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary inereases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit n n - S T N
obligation 1.80 1.92 1.94 1.85




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Ry in lakhs

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018 2018 2018 2018
Assumplions Discount rate Future suln ry increases -
Sensitivity Level 1% increase |% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefil . _ ’ S = - = W
obligation 43 153 1.5 148

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions oceurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions 1o the defined benefit plan in future years:

R in lakhs

Duration ( Years) For the year ended For the year endetl
Marveh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
l 13.70 11.00
2 11.44 9.43
3 9.80 8.00
4 £.50 6.91
5 7.32 5.76
Above 5 23,43 18.89
Total expected paymenis 14.24 59,049

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation af the end of the reporting period is 4.6 years (March

31, 2018: 3 years).

32. Commitments ani contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has taken hotel properties under operating lease agreements. These are generally cancellable and are
renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. The lease for hotel properties are non-cancellable for a

period of twenty three to twenty nine years.

The Group has recognised the following expenses as rent in the statement of Profit & Loss towards minimum |ease

payment,

R



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
MNotes to consolidated financial statements for Lhe year ended March 31, 2019

Rs, in lekhs

Particulnrs
As at March 31, As al March 31,
2019 2018
Lease Reni on Hatel Properties | 664.41 1,595.64
Total 1,664.41 1,505.64

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as al March 31 are, as follows:

R in fakhs

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2019 2018
Minimum Lease Payments :
Mot later than one year 1.R13.87 1,723.75
Later than one year but not later than five years 8.314.42 7,922.40
Later than five years 55,865.77 57.956.95
Total 65,9900 67,603, 10

b. Commitmenis
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on eapital account and not provided for:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for March 31, 2019 Rs. 7.360.93 lakhs
(March 31,2018 Rs. 13,950.14 lakhs)

c. Contingent liabilities

(i) Legal claim contingency
R, in Takhs

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
a.  |[Counter guarantees issued in respect of guarantees
issued by company’s bankers 777.84 341.97
c. |Value Added Tax (VAT) - =
d. [Service Tax ' 92,38 92.38
e, |Income Tax 1640 16.40
f.  |Property Tax - 9,34

The Group's pending litigations above pertains to proceedings pending with Income Tax, Sales/VAT tax and other
authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for
where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements.

(2 @f ¢




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial
statements,

(i) During the curreni year, the Ultimate Holding Company and one of the subsidiary company, Hyacinth Hotels
Private Limited (collectively known as “Companies”) has received favorable order from Honorable High Court of
Delhi (HC) in an ongoing case wherein the Company had received show cause notice from Collector of Stamps,
Delhi (*Department’) for non-payment of stamp duty as per Indian Stamp Act, 1899 on right to use the land given
by Dethi International Airport (PY Lid. (DIAL) under the Development Agreement dated May 25, 2009 (*DA’).

(i) Hyacinth Hatels Private Limited, one of the subsidiary company, has received a demand from South Delhi
Municipal Corporation (‘the Authority”) wherein the Authority has called upon the subsidiary company (o pay an
amount of Rs. 68,20 lakhs (for the financial Years 2010-11 to financial years 2013-2014) towards annual value in
respect of the hotel property situated in Hospitality District, Aerocity. The Subsidiary Company filed a writ
petition in the high court against the said order. Pending adjudication, the High Court had given interim stay
directing the subsidiary company to deposit Rs 25 lakhs, The management based upon its assessment and expeit’s
advice believes that any further liability against the aforesaid demand (including the demand for any subsequent

vear) is improbable (o crysiallize.

(==




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

33 Related Parly Transactions

Names of related parties

Holding company - Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Fellow subsidiary companies - Begonia Hotels Private Limited
- Nightingale Hotels Private Limited.
- Canary Hotels Private Limited
- Meringue Hotels Private Limited
- Manakin Resorts Private Limited

Key Management Personnel - Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani(Chairman & Managing
Director)
- Mr. Sachin Doshi(Director)(Upto August 10,2017)
- Mr.Niten Malhan(Director)
- Mr. Rattan Keswani(Direclor)
- Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka{Independent Director)
- Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal(Independent Director)(Upto
April 1,2017)
- Mr. Dominic James Doran{Director)
- Mr. Anish Kumar Saraf (Director)
- Mr. Brian Lap Hei Hung ( Additional Director)(Wel
August 24, 2017)
-Mr. Paramartha Saikia( Independent Director){wef
June 8, 2017)
-Mr. Sumant Jaidka (Whole Time Director of Inovoa
Hotels & Resorts Limited)
- Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha (Additional Divector) (from
August 13, 2018)

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by - Spank Management Services Private Limited
key management personnel or their relatives - Toucan Real Estates Private Limited
Enterprise in which Holding company has -Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited

Significant Influence

Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during the
year:
Chief Financial Officer : Mr. Inder Pal Batra

Company Secretary : Ms. Pooja Bakshi
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
MNotes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Terms and conditions of transactions with velated parties

Outstanding balances with related parties at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement
occurs in cash, For the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company has nol recorded any impairment of
receivables relating 1o amounis owed by related parties (March 31, 2017: Rs Nil). This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the

market in which the related party operates.

Commitmenis with velated parties
The Group has not entered into any commitments with relaled parties during the year.

3. Fair value measurement

a. Financial assels
By, i fekls

Marveh 31, 2009 Mareh 31, 2018

FYTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amorlised Cost
Finanecinl Assels
Trade Receivables i 2.262.00 - 1173.67
Investments 36416 - 116,01 .
Sceurity Deposils . 320599 - 287401
Other bank bolinees ) 192,75 - 218,75
Cash and Cash 1
Exquivalents . 98602 82044
Interest neerued on .
depasit with banks - 11315 D7.18
Laovans E =
{Hher amotnl
recoverible - 130749 : 303.80
Total Finnneinl
Assels 36416 ey K01 6.487.85

b. Financial liabilities
Ry I lekhs
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
EVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cosl Cosl
Borrowings . 50,809.96 - 42,834.37
Trade Payables - 3,991.18 - 2914.08
Other Financial " 6,490.43 - 5.003.31
Liabilities
Total Financial
- T0L381.57 - 1,751.76

Liabilities Gos .
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Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and linbilities

Fair value measuremenl

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between markel participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Group categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on
the ability to observe inpuis employed in their measurement which are described as follows;

i) Levell
Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

if) Level 2
Inputs are inpuls that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level | for the asset or liability,

iif) Level 3

Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable
related market data or Group's assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and liabilities:

Financial assets and liabilitics measured al fair value

Narch 31, lﬂl'j.
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Tolal
Financial assels i
Financial investments as FYTPL
Quoted Mutval Funds 364.16 B ) 364.16
Mlarch 31, 2018
[ Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Finnneinl nsscis
Financial investments as FVYTPL
Queted Mutual Funds I6.01 = - 116.01

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables,
bank overdrafis, Interest accrued on bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets and other

& 3
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current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-lerm maturities
ol these instruments.

The fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities are
considered o be the same as their carrying values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.

The following methods and assumptions were used lo estimate the fair values:

» The fair values of the investment in mutual funds have been estimated based on NAV of the
assels at ench reporting date
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J5, Financial visk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial linbililies comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these [inancial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and to support ils
operations. The Group's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash
equivalents that derive directly from ils operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management
aversees the management of these risks. The Group's senior management is supported by a financial risk
committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the
Group. This financial risk commiltee provides assurance to the Group's senior management that the
Group's financial risk activilies are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk. which are summarised as
below:

Marlket risk

Markel risk i the risk that the fair value of future cash Aows of a fnancial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices, Markel risk comprises interest rate risk Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Inlerest rale rish

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure fo the risk of changes in markel
interest rates relates primarily (o the Group's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates, The
Group is carrying its borrowings primarily al variable rate. The Group expects the variable rate 1o
decline, accordingly the Group is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

R, In feukles
March 31,
2019 March 31, 2018
Variable rate borrowings 59,750.78 44.605.83
Fixed rate borrowings 119,18 84.48

Intevest rale sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on thal
portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:
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Increase/decrease Effe:::iun
in basis poinis P
" before tax

Ry, T fenkhs

March 31, 2019
INR 50 188.47
INR =30 (188.47)
March 31, 2018
INR 50 |BB.48
INR -50 | (188.48)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed 1o credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities. including deposits with banks
and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

{a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Group's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of
number of days and amount,

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk al the reporting date is the carrying value
of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 9. The Group does not hold collateral as seeurity.

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposils

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group's treasury department in accordance with
the Group's policy. Invesiment of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within
credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2019, March 2018 is the carrying amount as illustrated in

Mote 9,
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Re. in ledkhs

Ageing Moot | a0te
Mot due - -
0-60 days past due 979.86 1273.98
6 1-120 days past due 629.14 30581
121-180 days past due 183.66 223.78
180-365 days past due 191.75 27642
365-T30 days past due 278.19 69,56
maore than 730 days 24,12

Provision for doubiful debis (including provision lor expected credil loss)

Re. in lakhs
Ageing M“:ri;::; 31, March 3,
2018
Not due -
0-60 days past due -
f1-120 days past due -
121-180 days past due -
1 80-365 days past due -
more than 365 days 18.35 1841

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debis - Trade

receivables(including provision for expected eredit loss)

R, In lakhs

March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Provision at beginning 18.41 18.53
Addition during the year . g
Reversal during the year . -
Liilised during the year 0.06 0,12
Provision at closing 18.35 18.41

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Loans and deposits (including provision for

expecied credit loss)

Provision at elosing

March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Provision at beginning 8.75 B.75
Addition during the year -
Reversal during the year - -
Utilised during the year -
8.75 B.75
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Liguidity risk

The Group monitors its risk of n shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Group's
objective is to maintain a balance between cantinuity of funding and fexibility through the use of bank
overdrafls, cash credit facilities and bank loans, The Group assessed the concentration of risk with
respect 1o refinancing its debl and concluded it (o be low. The Group has access 1o 8 sufficient variety of
sources of funding and debl maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. As at
March 31, 2019, the group had available Rs. 3,860 lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rs. 20,500 lakhs) of undrawn

committed borrowing facilities,
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The table below sufimarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments,

Year ended
March 31,2019
Borrowings
Trade and other
payables

{her Financial
Liahilities

Yeur ended
March 31, 2018
Borrowings
Trade and other
payables

Other Financial
Linbilities

Re.in fekhy
On demand s ik 2 Sito k3 | to 5 years > 5 years Toltal
months months
660.00 331.33 1.949.25 1549921  41.460.17 50,899.96
3.991.15 - - - = 3.991.15
6.490.44 . X - 6,490 44
11,141.59 33013 1.949.25 15,499.21 £1,460.17 7038155
. 218,12 1,659.62 12,29794  30.514.63 44,6903
2.914.08 = < - . 2.914.08
3.147.37 = = 5 . 3,147.37
6,061.45 21812 165962 1229794 30,514.63 5075176
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A6, Capilal managenent
For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium

and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective ol the
Group's eapital management is to maximise the shareholder value,

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital struciure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares, The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debl divided by total capital plus
net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less
cash and cash equivalents.

Bs. in lakhs
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Borrowings 59,899.96 44,690.31
Trade payables (Note | 8) 3.991.15 2.914.08
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) 986.02 82044
Net debi 62,905.09 46,783.95
Total capital 96,919.20 96,412.91
Capital and net debt 15982429  143,196,86
Gearing ratio 30% 3%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims {o
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define

capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
horrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objeclives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,
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37. Segment Reporting

The Group is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Group performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicalor of the Group as &
single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Group as per the requirements of Ind
AS 108 — “Operating Segments™,

Information about geographical areas

The Group has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Group as per the
requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operaling Segments”.

Information aboul major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue
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38, During the earlier years, one of the subsidiary had entered into an Infrastructure development and
services agreement with Delhi International Airport Limited to develop two hotels at Aero City,
New Delhi for an initial term of 27 years, extendable at the option of the subsidiary lor an additional
period of 30 years provided DIAL gets (he extension from Adrport Authority of India. DIAL is
committed to take over the building at *Book values’, as defined in the aforesaid agreement in case

the agreament is not extended further.

39, Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medinm Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 20046,
Ry in ks

March 31, | March 31,
2009 2018

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining|  101.53 | Nil
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Nil Nil
section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium Enlerprise
Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made 1o the supplier beyond the appoinied day

during each nccounting year

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of] Nil Nil
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006,

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the Nil 0.05
end of ench accounting year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable Nil Nil
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprisefor the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

40. The Group does not have any long term coniracts including derivative contracts for which there are
any material foreseeable losses.

i
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41, There has been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group.

42. Previous period’s figures in the financial statements, including the notes thereto, have been
reclassified wherever required to confirm to the current period’s preseniation/classification. These
are not malerial and do not affect the previously reported net profit or equity.

As per our report of even dale

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Fleur Hotels Private Limited
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Patanjali G. Keswani Inder Pal Batra
Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Pooja Arora
Company Secretary

Place: Mew Delhi
Diale: May 29, 2019
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